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PEOPLEOF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS ) JUL 232004
LISA MADIGAN, AttorneyGeneral ) STATE OF ILLINOIS
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)
Complainant, )
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vs. ) (Enforcement-Land&
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SMITHFIELD PROPERTIES,L.L.C. )
An Illinois limited liability )
Company,WOOTON CONSTRUCTION )
LTD., an Illinois corporation,and )
CHICAGOSUN-TIMES,INC., aDelaware )
Corporation, )

)
Respondents. )

ANSWER

Respondent,ChicagoSun-Times,Inc. (“Sun-Times),by its attorneys,Quarles& Brady

LLP, for its Answerto Complainant’sComplaint,statesasfollows:

1. VIOLATIONS BY SMITHFIELD AND WOOTON

COUNT I

FAILURE TO PERFORM SITE EVALUATION AND CLASSIFICATION

1. This Complaintis broughton behalfofthePeopleoftheStateofIllinois, by Lisa
Madigan,Attorney GeneraloftheStateof Illinois, on her ownmotion, andat therequestofthe
Illinois EnvironmentalProtectionAgency(“Illinois EPA”) pursuantto thetermsandprovisionof
Section31 of theIllinois EnvironmentalProtectionAct (“Act”), 415 ILCS 5/31 (2002).

ANSWER: Sun-Timesadmitstheallegationsin paragraph1.

2. At all times relevantto this Complaint,SmithfieldProperties,L.L.C.
(“Smithfield”) was andis an Illinois limited liability company.

ANSWER: Sun-Timesis without knowledgeor informationsufficient to form abeliefasto

thetruth or falsity oftheallegationsin paragraph2.
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3. At all timesrelevantto this Complaint,WootonConstruction,Ltd. (“Wooton”)

wasandis an Illinois corporation.

ANSWER: Sun-Timesis without knowledgeor informationsufficient to form a beliefasto

thetruth orfalsity ofthe allegationsin paragraph3.

4. At all times relevantto this Complaint,thepieceof landwherethealleged
violationsoccurredis locatedat222 SouthRacineAvenue,Chicago,Illinois (“Site”). TheSite
usedto be an industrial areawhich hasnowbeendevelopedinto 42 townhomeunits. Fora
numberof yearstheChicagoSun-Times,Inc., a Delawarecorporation,(“Sun-Times”)usedthe
Siteasahomefor its Daily Newsfleet maintenancegarage.

ANSWER: Sun-Timesadmitsthat thepropertyin issueis locatedat 222 SouthRacine

Avenuein Chicago,Illinois. Sun-Timesis without knowledgeor informationsufficient to form

abeliefasto thetruth or falsity oftheallegationsin the secondsentencein paragraph4. Sun-

Times deniestheallegationsin thethird sentenceofparagraph4.

5. Historically, theSitehashad severalpetroleumundergroundstoragetanks
(“USTs”). Someof theUSTswereinstalledasfar backasthe 1950’s. SomeoftheUSTshave
beenremovedandsomestill remainabandonedin placeattheSite.

ANSWER: Sun-Timesadmits theallegationsin thefirst andthird sentencesofparagraph5.

Sun-Timesis without knowledgeor informationsufficient to form a beliefas to thetruth or

falsity of theallegationsin thesecondsentencein paragraph5.

6. From sometimeprior to 1917until it sold thepropertyto Smithfield in October
1999,theSun-TimeswastheowneroftheSiteandall oftheUSTswhich wereinstalledat the
Site.

ANSWER: Sun-Timesdeniestheallegationsin paragraph6.

7. On August2, 1991,the Illinois StateFire Marshalreceivedfrom theSun-Timesa
Notification for UndergroundStorageTankswhich notified theStateFireMarshalthattheSun-
Timeswastheownerandoperatorofeight (8) USTsat theSite.

ANSWER: Sun-Timesadmits theallegationsin paragraph7.

8. TheSun-TimesusedtheUSTsto storefuel for its fleet maintenancegarage
locatedat theSite.
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ANSWER: Sun-Timesadmitsthe allegationsin paragraph8.

9. OnApril 23, 1999, the Sun-Times,afterinforming theOffice oftheStateFire
Marshal (“OSFM”), removedone active10,000gallon unleadedgasolineUST from the Site.
During removal,theSun-Timesdiscoveredthat a releaseofpetroleumproductshadoccurredin
thevicinity of the 10,000gallon unleadedgasolineUST atsomeundeterminedtime. TheSun-
Timesreportedthereleaseincidentto theIllinois EPAwhich catalogedit asLUST IncidentNo.
99103. Sun-Timesthenperformedremediationofthesoil contaminatedwith gasolineat the
vicinity wherethe 10,000gallon unleadedgasolinetankwasremoved.

ANSWER: Sun-Timesadmitstheallegationsin paragraph9 excepttheallegationthat the

LUST IncidentNo. was 99103. Thecorrect IncidentNo. is 991013.

10. On October26, 1999,theIllinois EPA issueda No FurtherRemediationletterto
theSun-Timesfor LUST IncidentNo. 991013basedupon the45 day/CorrectiveAction
CompletionReportsubmittedto theIllinois EPAby Sun-Times.

ANSWER: Sun-Timesadmitstheallegationsin paragraph10.

11. RespondentSun-Timesdid not performa groundwaterinvestigationto determine
theextentofgroundwatercontaminationat thetime it removedthe 10,000gallonunleaded
gasolineUST.

ANSWER: Sun-Timesadmitsthat it did not perform agroundwaterinvestigationin

cormectionwith theremovalofthe10,000gallonunleadedgasolineUST. Groundwaterwasnot

encounteredand clearancesamplesfollowing soil remediationmet residentialstandardsunder

IEPA’s Tiered Approachto CorrectiveAction. Therefore,no groundwaterinvestigationwas

necessary.

12. On December3, 1998,theSun-Timesenteredinto an agreementto sell the
propertyto KenardInvestments,Inc. (“Kenard”) andon October27, 1999,Kenardassignedits
interestto Smithfield. On June6, 2002, almostfouryearsafterthesale,Sun-Timesinformedthe
OSFMit had soldthepropertyto Kenard.

ANSWER: Sun-Timesadmitsthat it enteredinto an agreementto sellthepropertyto Kenard

on December3, 1998 andthat almostfour yearsafterthesale,Sun-TimesinformedtheOSFM it

hadsold thepropertyto Kenard. Sun-Timesis without knowledgeor informationsufficientto

form abeliefasto thetruth or falsity of theremainingallegationsin paragraph12.
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13. Prior to thesaleof theSite,Sun-Timesdid not remediatethesoil at theSite,with
theexceptionofthesmall areaimpactedwith gasolineunderLUST IncidentNo. 991013. Sun-
Timesleft in-placesoil contaminatedwith eithergasolineand/ordieselfuel from eitherleaking
USTs and/orsurfacespills whenSun-TimeswasusingtheSitefor anumberofyearsasa fleet
vehiclemaintenanceandrefuelingfacility.

ANSWER: Sun-Timesdeniestheallegationsin paragraph13.

14. At an unspecifieddate,SmithfieldandWootonbeganconstructinga town house
complexon theSitepurchasedfrom Sun-Times. Severalofthetownhouseswereconstructedon
top ofthecontaminatedsoil.

ANSWER: Sun-Timesadmitstheallegationsin thefirst sentencein paragraph14. Sun-

Timesdeniestheremainingallegationsin paragraph14.

15. In November1999,Wootonremovedan active10,000gallon dieselUST from the
Site. WootonremovedtheUST withoutpermissionfrom theOSFMor apermit from theCity of
ChicagoDepartmentof theEnvironment.

ANSWER: Sun-Timesis withoutknowledgeor informationsufficient to form a beliefasto

thetruth or falsity oftheallegationsin paragraph15.

16. In theSpring of 2001,while RespondentsSmithfieldandWootonwere
conductingconstructionrelatedactivitiesat theSite,an on-sitedrinkingwatermain ruptured.
Shortly aftertheruptureof thedrinking watermain, a residentof thenew townhomesat theSite
reporteda petroleumtastein his drinkingwater.

ANSWER: Sun-Timesis without knowledgeor informationsufficient to form abeliefasto

thetruthor falsity oftheallegationsin paragraph16.

17. Whenconsultantshiredby Wootonwereinvestigatingthepetroleumtastingwater
complaint,theydiscoveredthat thesoil in theareawherethewatermain rupturedwas
contaminatedwith dieselfuel.

ANSWER: Sun-Timesis without knowledgeor informationsufficient to form abeliefasto

thetruth or falsity oftheallegationsin paragraph17.

18. Uponinformationandbelief, Complainantallegesthat thesourceof thesoil
contaminationin theareawherethewatermain rupturedwasfrom oneormoreoftheUSTs
ownedandoperatedby Sun-Timesand/orsurfacespills ofpetroleumproductsover a numberof
yearswhenSun-TimesusedtheSiteasafleet vehiclemaintenanceandrefuelng(sic) facility.
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ANSWER: Sun-Timesdeniestheallegationsin paragraph18.

19. In April 2001, Wootonretainedan engineeringfirm to conductsubsurface
investigationandremediationactivities.

ANSWER: Sun-Timesis without knowledgeor informationsufficient to form abeliefasto

thetruth or falsity oftheallegationsin paragraph19.

20. On May 24, 2001,the engineeringfirm retainedby Wootonsubmittedto the
Illinois EPA LUST Sectionits remedialactioncompletionreport. Theremediationconsistedof
removing425 tonsof dieselcontaminatedsoil to a depthof3 to 4 feet andbackfillingthearea
with cleanclay soil. Contaminatedsoil was removedfrom areasin theopencourtyardin front of
town homeunits numbers23 through42.

ANSWER: Sun-Timesis without knowledgeor informationsufficient to form abeliefasto

thetruth or falsity oftheallegationsin paragraph20.

21. On July 27, 2001, theIllinois EPArejectedtheremedialaction completionreport
becausecontaminationstill remainsat thesite. SincegroundwaterwasencounteredattheSite, a
full groundwaterinvestigationshould havebeenconductedto determinetheextentof
groundwatercontamination.

ANSWER: Sun-Timesis without knowledgeor informationsufficient to form a beliefasto

thetruth or falsity oftheallegationsin paragraph21.

22. OnJanuary28, 2002, the Illinois EPA receiveda groundwaterclassificationstudy
andTier2 evaluationsubmittedby Smithfield. On March 20, 2002,theIllinois EPArejectedthe
studybecausegroundwatercontaminantanalysiswasnot conducted.

ANSWER: Sun-Timesis without knowledgeor informationsufficient to form abeliefasto

thetruth orfalsity of the allegationsin paragraph22.

23. Section57.6(a)oftheAct, 415 ILCS 5/57.6(a)(2002),titled, Under,ground
storagetanks,earlyaction, providesasfollows:

(a) Ownersand operatorsofundergroundstoragetanksshall, in responseto all
confirmedreleases,comply with all applicablestatutoryandregulatory
reportingandresponserequirements.

ANSWER: Sun-Timesadmitstheallegationsin paragraph23.
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24. Section732.103oftheIllinois Pollution ControlBoard(“Board”) WasteDisposal
Regulations,35 Ill. Adm. Code,732.103titled,Definitions, providesthefollowing pertinent
definitions:

“CORRECTIVE ACTION” meansactivitiesassociatedwith compliancewith the
provisionsofSections57.6 and57.7 oftheAct. (Section57.2 oftheAct.)

“RESIDENTIAL UNIT” meansa structureusedprimarily for dwellingpurposes
includingmulti-unit dwellingssuchasapartmentbuildings,condominiums,
cooperativesor dormitories.

“SITE” meansanysinglelocation,place,tract of landorparcelofproperty
includingcontiguouspropertynot separatedby a public right-of-way. (Section
3.61 oftheAct)

“UNDERGROUND STORAGETANK” or “UST” meansany oneor
combinationoftanks(including undergroundpipesconnectedthereto)which is
usedto containan accumulationof regulatedsubstances,andthevolumeofwhich
(includingthevolume ofundergroundpipesconnectedthereto)is 10 percentum
ormorebeneaththesurfaceoftheground. Suchtermdoesnot include anyof the
following or anypipesconnectedthereto.

“UST SYSTEM” or “tank system”meansan undergroundstoragetank, connected
undergroundpiping,undergroundancillaryequipment,andcontainmentsystem,
if any.

“OCCURRENCE”meansanyreleasefrom an undergroundstoragetank,
including any additional releasefrom that undergroundstoragetankat thesite
identified in thecourseofperformingcorrectiveactionin responseto the initial
release. (Section57.2 oftheAct)

“OSFM” meanstheOffice oftheStateFire Marshal.

“OPERATOR”meansanypersonin controlof, orhavingresponsibilityfor, the

daily operationoftheundergroundstoragetank.(42U.S.C. Section6991)
“OWNER” in thecaseofan undergroundstoragetank in useon November8,
1984,or broughtintouseafterthat date,any personwho ownsan underground
storagetankusedfor the storage,useordispensingof regulatedsubstances;

“PERSON”means,for thepurposesofinterpretingthedefinitionsoftheterms
“owner” or“operator,”an individual, trust, firm, joint stockcompany,joint
venture,consortium,commercialentity, corporation(includingagovernment
corporation),partnership,association,state,municipality, commission,political
subdivisionof a state,or any interstatebody andshall includetheUnitedStates
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Governmentand eachdepartment,agency,andinstrumentalityoftheUnited
States. (Derivedfrom 42 U.S.C.Section6991)

“PETROLEUM” meanspetroleum,includingcrudeoil or any fractionthereof
which is liquid atstandardconditionsoftemperatureandpressure(60°F and 14.7
poundsper squareinch absolute).(Derivedfrom 42 U.S.C. Section6991)

“PHYSICAL SOIL CLASSIFICATION” meansverification ofgeological
conditionsconsistentwith regulationsfor identifying andprotectingpotable
resourcegroundwaterorverification that subsurfacestrataareasgenerally
mappedin thepublicationIllinois GeologicalSurveyCircular(1984)entitled
“Potential for ContaminationofShallowAquifersin Illinois,” by Berg, Richard
C., et al. Suchclassificationmayincludereviewofsoil borings,well logs,
physicalsoil analysis,regionalgeologicmaps,orotherscientificpublications
(Section57.2 oftheAct).

“RELEASE” meansany spilling, leaking, emitting, discharging,escaping,
leaching,or disposingofpetroleumfrom an undergroundstoragetankinto
groundwater,surfacewaterorsubsurfacesoils. (Section57.2 of theAct)

ANSWER: Sun-Timesadmitstheallegationsin paragraph24.

25. Pursuantto thedefinition of 35 Ill. Adrn. Code732.103,Respondentsareowners
oftheUSTsat theSitebecausetheUSTswerein useon November8, 1984,orbroughtinto use
after that date.

ANSWER: Sun-Timesadmitstheallegationsofparagraph25 astheyrelateto Smithfield.

Sun-Timesis without knowledgeor informationsufficient to form abeliefasto thetruth or

falsity ofthe allegationsin paragraph25 as theyrelateto Wooton. Sun-Timesdeniesthe

allegationsin paragraph25 to theextentthat theyaredirectedto theSun-Times.

26. TheUSTs at theSite andtheirassociatedundergroundequipmentareUST
systemsasthat termis definedby 35 Ill. Adm. Code731.103.

ANSWER: Sun-Timesadmitstheallegationsin paragraph26.

27. Therewas a releaseof petroleumproductson theSiteon orbeforeNovember
1999,astheterm“release”is definedby 35 Ill. Adm. Code722.103.

ANSWER: Sun-Timesadmitstheallegationsin paragraph27.

28. Section732.300(a)of theBoardWasteDisposalRegulations,35 Ill. Adm. Code
732.300(a),titled, General,providesasfollows:
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(a) Exceptasprovidedin subsection(b)below, theowneror operatorofanysite
subjectto this partshall evaluateand classifythesite in accordancewith the
requirementsof this SubpartC. All suchsitesshall be classifiedas“No
FurtherAction,” “Low Priority” or“High Priority”. Siteclassificationsshall
bebasedon theresultsof thesiteevaluation,including,butnot limited to, the
physicalsoil classificationandthegroundwaterinvestigation,if applicable.

ANSWER: Sun-Timesadmits theallegationin paragraph28.

29. Section732.307(a)oftheBoardWasteDisposalRegulations,35 Ill. Adm. Code
732.307(a),titled, SiteEvaluation,providesasfollows:

(a) Exceptasprovidedin Section732.200(b),the owneror operatorof any site
for which a releaseofpetroleumhasbeenconfirmedin accordancewith
regulationspromulgatedby theOSFM andreportedto IEMA shallarrangefor
siteevaluationand classificationin accordancewith the requirementsof this
Section. A LicensedProfessionalEngineer(or, whereappropriate,persons
workingunderthe directionof a LicensedProfessionalEngineer)shall
conductthesite evaluation.The resultsof thesiteevaluationshall providethe
basisfor determiningthesiteevaluation.Theresultsofthesiteevaluation
shall providethebasisfor determiningthesiteclassification.Thesite
classificationshallbe certifiedasrequiredby thesupervisingLicensed
ProfessionalEngineer.

ANSWER: Sun-Timesdeniestheallegationsin paragraph29.

30. Section732.100(c)oftheBoardWasteDisposalRegulations,titled,Applicability,

providesasfollows:
* * *

(c) Ownersor operatorssubjectto this Partby law or by electionshall
proceedexpeditiouslyto comply with all requirementsoftheAct and the
regulationsandto obtain the “No FurtherRemediation”lettersignifying
final dispositionofthesitefor purposesofthis Part. TheAgencymayuse
its authoritypursuantto theAct and Section732.105ofthis part to
expediteinvestigative,preventiveor correctiveactionby an owneror
operatoror to initiate suchaction.

ANSWER: Sun-Timesadmitstheallegationsin paragraph30.

31. Respondents,SmithfieldandWooton asownersand/oroperatorsof theSite
wherea releaseofpetroleumproductsoccurreddid not performasiteevaluationand
classificationin accordancewith therequirementsof 35 III. Adm. Code732.300(a)and
732.307(a).
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ANSWER: Sun-Timesis without knowledgeor informationsufficient to form abeliefasto

thetruth or falsity oftheallegationsin paragraph31.

32. By failing to performsiteevaluationandclassificationin accordancewith 35 Ill.
Adm. Code732.300(a)and732.307(a),RespondentsSmithfieldandWootonviolatedSection
732.100(c)of theBoardWasteDisposalRegulations,35 Ill. Adm. Code732.100(c)and,thereby
violated Section57.6(a)oftheAct, 415 ILCS 5/57.6(a)(2002).

ANSWER: Sun-Timesis without knowledgeor informationsufficient to form a beliefasto

thetruth or falsity oftheallegationsin paragraph32.

COUNT II

FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH REPORTING
AND RESPONSE REQUIREMENTS

1-27 Complainantreallegesandincorporatesby referenceherein,paragraphs1 through
27 ofCount I asparagraphsI through27 ofthis CountII.

ANSWER: Sun-Timesincorporatesits answersto paragraphsI through27 ofCountI asits

answersto paragraphsI through27 ofCount II.

28. Section732.200oftheBoardWasteDisposalRegulations,35 Ill. Adm. Code

732.200,titled, Generalprovidesasfollows:

Ownersandoperatorsof undergroundstoragetanksshall, in responseto all
confirmedreleasesofpetroleum,complywith all applicablestatutoryand
regulatoryreportingandresponserequirements.(Section57.6(a)of theAct) No
work planshallbe requiredfor conductingearlyactionactivities.

ANSWER: Sun-Timesadmitstheallegationsin paragraph28.

29. RespondentsSmithfield andWootonfailed to reporttheconfirmedreleaseof
petroleumproductsattheSitein accordancewith therequirementof35 Ill. Adm. Code732.200.

ANSWER: Sun-Timesis without knowledgeor informationsufficient to form abeliefasto

thetruth or falsity of theallegationsin paragraph29.

30. By failing to reporttheconfirmedreleaseofpetroleumproductsattheSite,
RespondentsSmithfieldandWootonviolatedSection732.200oftheBoard WasteDisposal
Regulations,therebyviolating Section57.6(a)oftheAct, 415 ILCS 5/57.6(a)(2002).

-9-



ANSWER: Sun-Timesis without knowledgeor informationsufficient to form abeliefas to

thetruth or falsity oftheallegationsin paragraph30.

COUNT III

FAILURE TO PERFORM INITIAL RESPONSEACTIONS

1-27. Complainantreallegesand incorporatesby referenceherein,paragraphs1 through

27 ofCountI asparagraphsI through27 of this CountIII.
ANSWER: Sun-Timesincorporatesits answersto paragraphsI through27 ofCountI asits

answersto paragraphs1 through27 ofCountIII.

28. Section732.203(a)oftheBoardWasteDisposalRegulations,35 Ill. Adm. Code

732.202(a),titled, EarlyAction, providesasfollows:
a) Uponconfirmationof a releaseofpetroleumfrom aUST systemin

accordancewith regulationspromulgatedby theOSFM,theowneror
operator,orboth,shall performthefollowing initial responseactions
within 24 hoursaftertherelease:

I) Reportthereleaseto IEMA (e.g.,by telephoneorelectronicmail):

2) Takeimmediateactionto preventany furtherreleaseofthe

regulatedsubstanceto theenvironment;and

3) Identifyandmitigatefire, explosionandvaporhazards.

ANSWER: Sun-Timesadmitstheallegationsin paragraph28.

29. RespondentsSmithfieldandWootondid notperforminitial responseactions
within 24 hoursafterconfirmationof thereleaseof petroleumfrom theSiteasrequiredby 35 Ill.
Adm. Code732.203(a).

ANSWER: Sun-Timesis without knowledgeor informationsufficient to form a beliefasto

thetruth orfalsity oftheallegationsin paragraph29.

30. By failing to performinitial responseactionswithin 24 hoursaftertheconfirmed
releaseofpetroleum,RespondentsSmithfieldandWootonviolatedSection732.202(a)ofthe
BoardWasteDisposalRegulations,therebyviolating Section57.6(a)of theAct, 415 ILCS
5/57.6(a)(2002).
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ANSWER: Sun-Timesis without knowledgeor informationsufficient to form a beliefasto

thetruth or falsity oftheallegationsin paragraph30.

COUNT IV

FAILURE TO PERFORM INITIAL ABATEMENT MEASURES

1-27. Complainantreallegesandincorporatesby referenceherein,paragraphsI through

27 of CountI asparagraphsI through27 ofthis CountIV.
ANSWER: Sun-Timesincorporatesits answersto paragraphsI through 27 ofCount I asits

answersto paragraphs1 through27 of CountIV.

28. Section732.202(b)of theBoardWasteDisposalRegulations,35 Ill. Adm. Code

732.202(b),titled,EarlyAction,providesasfollows:

(b) Uponconfirmationof a releaseofpetroleumfrom a UST systemin
accordancewith regulationspromulgatedby theOSFM,theowneror
operatorshall performthefollowing initial abatementmeasures:

1) Removeasmuchof thepetroleumfrom theUST systemasis
necessaryto preventfurtherreleaseinto theenvironment;

2) Visually inspectany abovegroundreleasesor exposedbelow
groundreleasesandpreventfurthermigrationofthereleased
substanceinto surroundingsoils andgroundwater;

3) Continueto monitor andmitigateany additionalfire andsafety
hazardsposedby vaporsor freeproductthathavemigratedfrom
theUSTexcavationzoneandenteredinto subsurfacestructures
(suchassewersor basements);

4) Remedyhazardsposedby contaminatedsoils that areexcavatedor
exposedasaresult of releaseconfirmation,site investigation,
abatementorcorrectiveactionactivities. If theseremedies
includetreatmentordisposalofsoils, theowneroroperatorshall
comply with 35 III. Adm. Code722, 724, 725, and807 through
815;

5) Measurefor thepresenceofareleasewherecontaminationis most
likely to be presentat theUST site,unlessthepresenceandsource
ofthereleasehavebeenconfirmedin accordancewith regulations
promulgatedby theOSFM. In selectingsampletypes,sample
locations,andmeasurementmethods,theowneror operatorshall
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considerthenatureof thestoredsubstance,thetypeofbackfill,
depthto groundwaterand otherfactorsasappropriatefor
identifyingthepresenceandsourceoftherelease;and

6) Investigateto determinethepossiblepresenceof freeproduct,and
beginfreeproductremovalassoonaspracticableand in
accordancewith Section732.203below.

ANSWER: Sun-Timesdeniestheallegationsin paragraph28.

29. RespondentsSmithfieldand Wootondid not adequatelyperforminitial abatement
measuresafterconfirmationofthereleaseofpetroleumproducts.

ANSWER: Sun-Timesis without knowledgeor informationsufficient to form abeliefasto

thetruthor falsity oftheallegationsin paragraph29.

30. By failing to adequatelyperforminitial abatementmeasuresafterconfirmationof
release,RespondentsSmithfieldandWootonviolated35 Ill. Adm. Code732.202(b)andthereby
violatedSection57.6(a)oftheAct, 415 ILCS 5/57.6(a)(2002).

ANSWER: Sun-Timesis without knowledgeor informationsufficient to form abeliefasto

thetruth or falsity oftheallegationsin paragraph30.

COUNT V

FAILURE TO ASSEMBLE INFORMATION ABOUT THE SITE

1-27. Complainantreallegesandincorporatesby referenceherein,paragraphs1 through

27 of CountI asparagraphsI through27 of this CountV.

ANSWER: Sun-Timesincorporatesits answersto paragraphsI through27 ofCountI asits

answersto paragraphs1 through27 of CountV.

28. Section732.202(d)oftheBoardWasteDisposalRegulations,35 III. Adm. Code
732.202(d),titled,EarlyAction,providesasfollows:

(d) Ownersor operatorsshallassembleinformationaboutthesiteandthe
natureof therelease,including informationgainedwhile confirmingthe
releaseor completingthe initial abatementmeasuresin subsections(a) and
(b) above. This informationmustinclude,but is not limited to, the
following:

1) Dataon thenatureand estimatedquantityofrelease;
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2) Datafrom availablesourcesorsite investigationsconcerningthe
following factories(sic): surroundingpopulations,waterquality,
useandapproximatelocationsofwells potentiallyaffectedby the
release,subsurfacesoil conditions,locationsof subsurfacesewers,
climatologicalconditionsandlanduse;

3) Resultsof thesitecheckrequiredat subsection(b)(5)of this
Section;

4) Resultsofthefreeproductinvestigationsrequiredat subsection
(b)(6)of this Section,to be usedby ownersoroperatorsto
determinewhetherfreeproductmustbe recoveredunderSection
732.203.

ANSWER: Sun-Timesdeniestheallegationsin paragraph28.

29. RespondentsSmithfield andWootonasownersand/oroperatorsoftheSitewhere
a releaseoccurreddid not assembleinformation abouttheSite andthenatureofthereleaseafter
confirmationof therelease.

ANSWER: Sun-Timesis without knowledgeor informationsufficient to form abeliefasto

thetruth or falsity oftheallegationsin paragraph29.

30. By failing to assembleinformationabouttheSiteandthenatureoftherelease
afterconfirmationoftherelease,RespondentsSmithfieldandWootonviolated35 III. Adm.
Code732.202(d),therebyviolating Section57.6(a)of theAct, 415 ILCS 5/57.6(a)(2002).

ANSWER: Sun-Timesis without knowledgeor informationsufficient to form a beliefasto

thetruth or falsity oftheallegationsin paragraph30.

COUNT VI

FAILURE TO SUBMIT PHYSICAL SOIL
CLASSIFICATION AND GROUNDWATER

INVESTIGATION PLAN
1-27. Complainantreallegesandincorporatesby referenceherein,paragraphs1 through

27 of CountI asparagraphs1 through27 ofthis CountVI.

ANSWER: Sun-Timesincorporatesits answersto paragraphs1 through27 ofCountI asits

answersto paragraphs1 through27 ofCount VI.
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28. Section57.7(a)(1)oftheAct, 415ILCS 5/57.7(a)(1)(2002),titled, Lea~çJj~g
UndergroundStorageTanks;SiteInvestigation,andCorrectiveAction,providesasfollows:

(a) Site Investigation.

(I) For anysite investigationactivitiesrequiredby statuteorrule, the
owneroroperatorshall submitto theAgencyfor approvala site
investigationplandesignedto determinethenature,concentration,
directionofmovement,rateofmovement,andextentofthe
contaminationaswell asthesignificantphysicalfeaturesofthesite
and surroundingareathat mayaffectcontaminanttransportand
risk to humanhealthand safetyandtheenvironment.

ANSWER: Sun-Timesadmitstheallegationsin paragraph28.

29. RespondentsSmithfieldand Wooton,asownersand operatorsoftheSitewherea
releaseofpetroleumproductsoccurred,failed to submitto theIllinois EPA a site investigation
plan in accordancewith therequirementsofSection57.7(A)(1)oftheAct, 415 ILCS
5/57.7(a)(I )(2002).

ANSWER: Sun-Timesis withoutknowledgeor informationsufficient to form abeliefasto

thetruth or falsity oftheallegationsin paragraph29.

30. By failing to submitto theIllinois EPA asite investigationplan in accordance
with therequirementsofSection57.7(a)(1),RespondentsSmithfieldand Wootonviolated
Section57.7(a)(1)oftheAct, 415 ILCS 5/57(a)(1)(2002).

ANSWER: Sun-Timesis without knowledgeor informationsufficient to form abeliefasto

thetruth or falsity oftheallegationsin paragraph30.

COUNT VII

CAUSING OR TENDING TO CAUSE WATER POLLUTION

1-22. Complainantreallegesandincorporatesby referenceherein,paragraphs1 through
22 ofCountI asparagraphs1 through22 of this CountVII.

ANSWER: Sun-Timesincorporatesits answersto paragraphs1 through22 of CountI asits

answersto paragraphs1 through22 ofCountVII.

23. Section12(a)oftheAct, 415 ILCS 5/12(a)(2002),providesasfollows:

No personshall:
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a. Causeorthreatenorallow thedischargeofacontaminantinto the
environmentin any Stateso asto causeor tendto causewaterpollution in
Illinois, eitheraloneor in combinationwith matterfrom othersources,or
so asto violateregulationsor standardsadoptedby thePollution Control
Boardunderthis Act.

ANSWER: Sun-Timesadmitstheallegationsin paragraph23.

24. Section3.3 15 oftheAct, 415. ILCS 5/3.315 (2002),definespersonasfollows:

“PERSON” is any individual, partnership,co-partnership,firm, company,limited
liabiilty (sic)company,corporation,association,joint stockcompany,trust,
estate,political subdivision,stateagency,or any otherlegal entity, or their legal
representative,agentor assigns.

ANSWER: But for thetypographicalerror,Sun-Timesadmitstheallegationsin paragraph24.

25. RespondentsSmithfieldandWootonareeacha “person”asthat termsis defined

in Section3.315 oftheAct, 415 ILCS 5/3.315(2002).

ANSWER: Sun-Timesadmitstheallegationsin paragraph25.

26. Section3.165 oftheAct, 415 ILCS 5/3.165(2002),definescontaminantas“any
solid, liquid or gaseousmatter,any odor,or any form ofenergy,from whateversource.”

ANSWER: Sun-Timesadmitstheallegationsin paragraph26.

27. Diesel or gasolinefuel which wasreleasedfrom oneor moreUSTsin watersof
theStateis a contaminnt(sic) asthat termis definedby Section3.165 of theAct, 415 ILCS
53.545(2002).

ANSWER: Sun-Timesis without knowledgeor informationsufficient to form a beliefasto

whetherdieselor gasolinefuel wasreleasedfrom oneormoreUSTsinto watersoftheState.

Sun-Timesadmitsthat sucha releasewould constituteacontaminantasdefinedby Section3.165

oftheAct, 415 ILCS 53.545 (2002).

28. Section3.545 of theAct, 415 ILCS 53.545(2002),defineswaterpollution:

“WATER POLLUTION” is suchalternationof thephysical,thermal,chemical,
biological or radioactivepropertiesof anywatersof theState,orsuchdischarge
of anycontaminationinto anywatersof theState,aswill or is likely to createa
nuisanceor rendersuchwatersharmful or detrimentalor injuriousto public
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health,safetyorwelfare,orto domestic,commercial,industrial agricultural,
recreational,orotherlegitimateuses,or to livestock,wild animals,birds, fish or
otheraquaticlife.

ANSWER: Sun-Timesadmitstheallegationsin paragraph28.

29. Section3.550oftheAct, 415 ILCS 5/3.550(2002)defines“Watersof theState”
as follows:

“WATERS” meansall accumulationsofwater,surfaceand underground,natural
andartificial, public andprivate, orpartsthereof which arewholly orpartially
within, flow through,or borderupon thisState.

ANSWER: Sun-Timesadmitstheallegationsin paragraph29.

30. Theundergroundwaterat theSitewhichwascontaminatedby thereleaseof
dieseland/orgasolinefuel from oneormoreof theUSTsand/orsurfacespills is a waterofthe
Stateastheterm“water” is definedby Section3.550oftheAct, 415 ILCS 5/3.550(2002).

ANSWER: Sun-Timesadmitsthat groundwaterbeneaththeSite is awateroftheStateasthe

term“water” is definedby Section3.550ofthe Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.550(2002). Sun-Timesis

without knowledgeor informationsufficient to form a beliefasto thetruth orfalsity ofthe

remainingallegationsin paragraph30.

31. From sometimeprior to November1999,until thedateof filing ofthis Complaint,
thegroundwaterat thesiteremainscontaminatedwith dieseland/orgasolinefuel releasedfrom
oneor moreUSTsand/orfrom surfacespill ofpetroleumproductsduringSun-Time’slong usage
of theSiteasa garageandrefuelingstationfor its fleet vehicles.

ANSWER: Sun-Timesdeniestheallegationsin paragraph31.

32. RespondentsSmithfieldandWootontook no actionto remediatethegroundwater
contaminationat theSite;

ANSWER: Sun-Timesis without knowledgeor informationsufficient to form a beliefas to

thetruthor falsity oftheallegationsin paragraph32.

33. RespondentsSmithfieldand Wootonby theiractionsand/orinactionscaused,
threatened,or allowedthedischargeofcontaminants,into theenvironmentsoasto causeor tend
to causewaterpollution in Illinois.
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ANSWER: Sun-Timesis without knowledgeor informationsufficient to form abeliefas to

thetruth orfalsity oftheallegationsin paragraph33.

COUNT VIII

FAILURE TO SUBMIT A 45-DAY REPORT

1-27. Complainantreallegesandincorporatesby referenceherein,paragraphs1 through
27 ofCountI asparagraphs1 through27 ofthis CountVIII.

ANSWER: Sun-Timesincorporatesits answersto paragraphs1 through27 ofCountI asits

answersto paragraphs1 through27 ofCountVIII.

28. Section732.202(e)oftheBoardWasteDisposalRegulations,35 Ill. Adm. Code
732.202(e)titled,Early Action,providesasfollows:

(e) Within 45 daysafterconfirmationof a releaseofpetroleumfrom a UST
systemin accordancewith regulationspromulgatedby theOSFM,owners
oroperatorsshallsubmitto the Agencytheinformationcollectedin
compliancewith subsection(d) abovein amannerthat demonstratesits
applicability andtechnicaladequacy.The informationshall be submitted
on formsprescribedby theAgencyor in a similar formatcontainingthe
sameinformation.

ANSWER: Sun-Timesdeniestheallegationsin paragraph28.

29. In November1999,whenSmithfield andWootonremovedtheactive 10,000

gallon dieselUST from theSite, theyweretheownersand/oroperatorsoftheUST.
ANSWER: Sun-Timesadmitsthat whentheactive 10,000gallon dieselUST wasremoved,at

leastSmithfieldwastheownerand/oroperatoroftheUST. Sun-Timesis without knowledgeor

informationsufficient to form abeliefasto thetruth orfalsity of theremainingallegationsin

paragraph29.

30. RespondentsSmithfieldandWootonasownersand/oroperatorsoftheUST
systemand/orSitewherethereleaseof petroleumproductsoccurred,did not submita report
summarizinginformationabouttheSiteandnatureofthereleasewithin 45 daysafter
confirmationoftherelease.
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ANSWER: Sun-Timesis without knowledgeor informationsufficient to form abeliefasto

thetruth orfalsity oftheallegationsin paragraph30.

31. By failing to submita reportsummarizinginformationabouttheSiteandnature
ofthereleasewithin 45 daysafterconfirmationoftherelease,RespondentsSmithfieldand
Wootonviolated35 Ill. Adm. Code732.202(e)andthereby,also violatedSection57.6(a)of the
Act, 415 ILCS 5/57.6(a)(2002).

ANSWER: Sun-Timesis without knowledgeor informationsufficientto form abeliefasto

thetruthor falsity of theallegationsin paragraph31.

II. VIOLATIONS BY CHICAGO SUN-TIMES

COUNT IX

CAUSING OR TENDING TO CAUSE WATER POLLUTION

1-22. Plaintiff reallegesandincorporatesby referenceherein,paragraphsI through22
ofCountI asparagraphs1 through22 ofthis CountIX.

ANSWER: Sun-Timesincorporatesits answersto paragraphsI through22 ofCountI asits

answersto paragraphsI through22 of CountIX.

23. Section12(a)of theAct, 415 ILCS 5/12(a)(2002),providesasfollows:

No personshall:

a. Causeor threatenorallow thedischargeof acontaminantinto the
environmentin anyStatesoasto causeor tendto causewaterpollution in
Illinois, eitheraloneor in combinationwith matterfrom othersources,orso
asto violateregulationsor standardsadoptedby thePollution ControlBoard
underthisAct.

ANSWER: Sun-timesadmitstheallegationsin paragraph23.

24. Section3.315 oftheAct, 415 ILCS 5/3.315(2002),definespersonasfollows:

“PERSON” is any individual, partnership,co-partnership,firm, company,limited
liability company,corporation,association,joint stockcompany,trust,estate,
political subdivision,stateagency,or any otherlegal entity, or their legal
representative,agentor assigns.

ANSWER: Sun-Timesadmitstheallegationsin paragraph24.
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25. RespondentSun-Times,is a “person”asthat termis definedin Section3.3 15 of
theAct, 415 ILCS 5/3.315(2002).

ANSWER: Sun-Timesadmitstheallegationsin paragraph25.

26. Section3.165 of theAct, 415 ILCS 5/3165(2002),definescontaminantas“any
solid, liquid orgaseousmatter,anyodor,orany form of energy,from whateversource.”

ANSWER: Sun-Timesadmitstheallegationsin paragraph26.

27. Dieselor gasolinefuelwhich wasreleasedfrom oneormoreUSTsownedand/or
operatedby Sun-Timesin watersoftheStateis a contaminantasthat termis definedby Section
3.165of theAct, 415 ILCS 5/3.165(2002).

ANSWER: Sun-Timesdeniesthat dieselor gasolinefuel wasreleasedfrom oneor more

USTsownedandoperatedby theSun-Timesintowatersof theState. Sun-Timesadmitsthat

sucha releasewould constituteacontaminantasdefinedby Section3.165 of theAct, 415 ILCS

53.545 (2002).

28. Section3.545 of theAct, 415 ILCS 3.545 (2002),defineswaterpollution:

“WATER POLLUTION” is suchalternationof thephysical,thermal,chemical,
biological orradioactivepropertiesof anywatersoftheState,or suchdischarge
ofany contaminationinto any watersof theState,aswill or is likely to createa
nuisanceor rendersuchwatersharmfulor detrimentalor injuriousto public
health,safetyor welfareor to domestic,commercial,industrial agricultural,
recreational,or otherlegitimateuses,or to livestock,wild animals,birds, fish or
otheraquaticlife.

ANSWER: Sun-Timesadmitstheallegationsin paragraph28.

29. Section3.550oftheAct, 415 ILCS 5/3.550(2002),defines“Watersof theState”
asfollows:

“WATERS” meansall accumulationof water,surfaceandunderground,natural
andartificial, public andprivate, orparts thereof,which arewholly orpartially
within, flow through,orborderuponthis State.

ANSWER: Sun-Timesadmitstheallegationsin paragraph29.

30. Theundergroundwaterat theSitewhich wascontaminatedby thereleaseof
dieseland/orgasolinefuel from oneor moreoftheUSTsand/orsurfacespills is awaterof the
Stateas theterm“water” is definedby Section3.550of theAct, 415 ILCS 5/3.550(2002).
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ANSWER: Sun-Timesdeniesthat dieselor gasolinefuel wasreleasedinto groundwaterat the

Sitevia surfacespills duringSun-Times’ownershipor operationoftheSiteor from oneor more

USTsownedandoperatedby theSun-Times.Sun-Timesadmitsthat groundwaterbeneaththe

Site is a wateroftheStateastheterm “water” is definedby Section3.550oftheAct, 415 ILCS

5/3.550(2002).

31. From sometimeprior to November1999,until the dateoffiling ofthis Complaint,
thegroundwaterat thesiteremainscontaminatedwith dieseland/orgasolinefuel releasedfrom
oneormoreUSTs and/orfrom surfacespills ofpetroleumproductsduringSun-Time’slong
usageof theSiteasa garageandrefuelingstationfor its fleet vehicles.

ANSWER: Sun-Timesdeniestheallegationsin paragraph31.

32. RespondentSun-Times,by its actionsand/orinactionscaused,threatened,or
allowedthedischargeof contaminants,into theenvironmentso asto causeortendto causewater
pollution in Illinois.

ANSWER: Sun-Timesdeniestheallegationsin paragraph32.

COUNT X

CREATING A WATER POLLUTION HAZARD

1-22. Plaintiff reallegesand incorporatesby referenceherein,paragraphsI through22
of CountI asparagraphs1 through22 ofthis CountX.

ANSWER: Sun-Timesincorporatesits answersto paragraphsI through22 ofCountI asits

answersto paragraphsI through22 ofCountX.

23. Section12(d)of theAct, 415 ILCS 5/12(d)(2002),provides:

No personshall:

Depositanycontaminantsuponthelandin suchmannerandplacesoasto create
awaterpollution hazard.

ANSWER: Sun-Timesadmitstheallegationsin paragraph23.

24. RespondentSun-Times,depositeddieseland/orgasolinefuel,contaminants,upon

thelandin suchmannerand placesoasto createa waterpollution hazard.
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ANSWER: Sun-Timesdeniestheallegationsin paragraph24.

25. By creatingawaterpollution hazard,RespondentSun-TimesviolatedSection
12(d)oftheAct, 415 ILCS 5/12(d)(2002).

ANSWER: Sun-Timesdeniestheallegationsin paragraph25.

COUNT XI

FAILURE TO SUBMIT A 45 DAY REPORT

1-27. Complainantreallegesandincorporatesby referenceherein,paragraphs1 through
27 of CountI asparagraphsI through27 oftheCountXI.

ANSWER: Sun-Timesincorporatesits answersto paragraphs1 through27 ofCountI asits

answersto paragraphs1 through27 ofCountXI.

28. Section732.202(e)oftheBoardWasteDisposalRegulations,35 Ill. Adm. Code
732.202(e)titled, EarlyAction,providesasfollows:

(e) Within 45 daysafterconfirmationofreleaseofpetroleumfrom a UST
systemin accordancewith regulationspromulgatedby theOSFM, owners
or operatorsshallsubmit to theAgencytheinformationcollectedin
compliancewith subsection(d) abovein a mannerthat demonstratesits
applicability andtechnicaladequacy.Theinformationshallbe submitted
on formsprescribedby theAgencyor in a similar formatcontainingthe
sameinformation.

ANSWER: Sun-Timesdeniestheallegationsin paragraph28.

29. In November1999,whenSmithfieldandWootonremovedtheactive 10,000
gallon dieselUST from theSite, Sun-Timeswasstill theregisteredowneroftheUST.

ANSWER: Sun-Timesdeniestheallegationsin paragraph29.

30. At thetime of thesaleoftheSite in 1999, Sun-Timesdid notnotify theOSFM
aboutthetransferofownershipof theUSTs.

ANSWER: Sun-Timesadmitstheallegationsin paragraph30.

31. Respondent,Sun-Times,astheownerand/oroperatorof theUSTsystemand/or
Sitewherethereleaseof petroleumproductsoccurred,did not submitareport summarizing
informationabouttheSiteandnatureofthereleasewithin 45 daysafterconfirmationofthe
release.
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ANSWER: Sun-Timesdeniestheallegationsin paragraph31. Sun-Timeswasneitherthe

ownernortheoperatoroftheUSTsystemat thetimetheUST systemwasremoved. Sun-Times,

therefore,wasnot obligatedto submita 45 day/CorrectiveAction CompletionReportwith

respectto that UST.

32. By failing to submitareportsummarizinginformationabouttheSiteand nature
ofthereleasewithin 45 daysafterconfirmationoftherelease,RespondentSun-Times,violated
35 Ill. Adm. Code732.202(e)andthereby,alsoviolatedSection57.6(a)oftheAct, 415 ILCS
5/57.6(a)(2002).

ANSWER: Sun-Timesdeniesthe allegationsin paragraph32.

WHEREFORESun-Timesrequeststhat theBoardenteran orderdenyingComplainant
its requestedrelief in its entirety,awardingSun-Timesits costsandfees incurredin this matter,
andawardingSun-TimessuchadditionalreliefastheBoarddeemsappropriate.

Respectfullysubmitted,

//~ ~MicIia’é~lS. MOstow
7 /

JanineLandow-Esser
Michael S. Mostow
Quarles& BradyLLP
500WestMadisonSt., Suite3700
Chicago,IL 60661
312.715.5158

ATTORNEYS FOR THE CHICAGO SUN-TIMES,INC.

QBCHI\375850.3
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I, Michael S. Mostow,attorneyforRespondentChicagoSun-Times,Inc., herebycertify

that a copyoftheforegoingChicago Sun-Times,Inc.’s Answer wasserveduponthefollowing

partiesby U.S. First ClassMail on this 23rddayof July,2004:

BradleyP. Halloran
HearingOfficer
Illinois Pollution Control. Board
JamesR. ThompsonCenter,Suite11-500
100 West.RandolphStreet
Chicago,Illinois 60601

ZemeheretBereket-Ab,Esq.
AssistantAttorneyGeneral
EnvironmentalBureau
188 W. RandolphStreet,

20
th Floor

Chicago,Illinois 60601

Kevin B. Hynes
O’Keefe,Lyons & Hynes,LLC
30 North LaSalle Street
Suite4100
Chicago,Illinois 60602
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